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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET ("GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In particular,
companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor
any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may
be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM
and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics
of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on
the internet website operated by the Exchange. Listed companies are not
generally required to issue paid announcement in gazetted newspapers.
Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have
access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on
GEM-listed issuers.

The Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors") of Prosten Technology Holdings
Limited (the "Company") collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules") for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, (1) the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due
and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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i ’ On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am pleased to present the results of
Chairman’s
Statement the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2007 .

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group recorded a consolidated turnover of approximately
HK$51,222,000 (2006: HK$59,050,000) and had a loss attributable to equity holders of approxiamtely
HK$34,489,000 (2006: HK$27,180,000). The Group managed to improve its gross profit margin from

52% to 64%, which was attributable to the wireless mobile value added services.

In 2007, Unison Networking Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Unison”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, has become the sole provider for wireless music search services on China Mobile’s
central music platform over the country and its nationwide mobile music search services was launched
successfully in China. In the years ahead, the Group will continue to enhance its business model and
consistently pursue its mission to become one of leading wireless mobile search services providers
and brand building in the fast moving telecommunication industry. The Group will continue to provide

professional custom-made services as to the mobile user’s needs.

In this year, negative impact brought by the continuous policy changes of the PRC telecom industry
affected the Group’s revenue especially in the latter half of this year. The less favorable business
environment impacted on our wireless mobile value added business in the last quarter of this year, which
led to a substantial decrease in revenue. Finally, the management determined to cease services in the
SMS, WAP, IVRS and MMS and completed this restructuring in March 2007. | have confidence that the
business operating restructuring will enable the Group to focus on its wireless mobile search services

business, hence more effectively.

Following the completion of issue of shares by placements and convertible bonds subscription exercises,
the working capital of the Company was strengthened and new directors joined the Company. The Group
embarks on a long-term strategy on the wireless mobile search services in China. At the same time, we
are increasingly focusing on the stablility, reliablity and efficiency of its wireless mobile search services

business that addresses its key business requirements at a reasonable manageable cost.

| believe that the Group is well positioned to face the challenges ahead and will continue to take a prudent
approach in allocating resources into projects with high return with limited capital outlay. The Group will

continue to leverage on its own resources and assets to create value for its shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extent our gratitude to all members of the
Board and staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group during the difficult times of year 2006.
On particular note, | would like to thank Mr. Yip Seng Mun and Mr. Yip Heon Ping and acknowledge their
significant contributions to the Group. Besides, | would also like to express my sincere appreciation to our

clients, business partners, shareholders and investors for their continuous support.

Yip Heon Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 June 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEE5Y

A. Operating Results

Revenue, Gross Profit, Other Income and Operating Expenses
For the year ended 31 March 2007, the consolidated revenue amounted
to HK$51,222,000, representing a decrease by HK$7,828,000 or 13% as
compared with previous year. The revenue from the wireless mobile value
added services business was decreased by HK$2,908,000 or 5% while
the revenue from solution integration services business was decreased by
HK$4,920,000 or 83% as compared with last year.

The net decrease in wireless mobile value added services revenue was
primarily due to revenues from Short Messaging Services (“SMS”), Wireless
Application Protocol (“WAP”), Interactive Voice Response Services
(“IVRS”) and Multimedia Messaging Services (“MMS”) were decreased by
HK$6,954,000 in aggregate. On the other hand, the wireless music search
services recorded HK$4,046,000 revenue during the year as the Group’s
strategic new product, Mobile Intelligent Navigation Engine (“MINE”) was
newly launched in the first quarter of this financial year. As mentioned in
previous quarter result announcements during this year, the net decrease
in revenues from SMS, WAP, IVRS and MMS was mainly attributable to
the negative impacts from the tightening of supervision and regulations
from China telecom operators. Due to the unstable market situation
and uncertain regulatory changes towards mobile value added services
providers in the PRC, the Group decided to shift its business focus to
wireless mobile search services provided by MINE and ceased to provide
SMS, WAP, IVRS and MMS services during the fourth quarter of this year.
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A. Operating Results (continued)

Revenue, Gross Profit, Other Income and Operating Expenses
(continued)

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2007 was increased
by HK$1,989,000 or 6% to HK$32,809,000. In addition, the Group’s gross
profit margin was increased by 12% from 52% in 2006 to 64% in 2007.
The increase in Group’s gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the
following reasons. Firstly, wireless mobile value added services business
generally contributed to a relatively higher gross profit margin to the Group
and their total revenue accounted for 98% of the Group’s total turnover in
current year. Secondly, the WAP revenue sharing ratio with China telecom
operators is higher than IVRS, therefore, the increase in WAP revenue and
the decrease in IVRS revenue in current year contributed the upward trend
in mobile value added services’ gross profit margin. Thirdly, as the Group
focused its business strategy in boosting wireless mobile value added
services revenue through launched promotion and marketing activities
aggressively, it made the selling expenses increased and the content
provider fee included in cost of sales was decreased relatively. As a result,
the overall gross profit margin for this segment was increased accordingly

in this year.

The other income was decreased by HK$1,610,000 or 59% to
HK$1,142,000 in this year. It was mainly due to the decrease of reversal of

allowance for doubtful debts by HK$1,218,000 compared with last year.

The selling expenses in 2007 was increased by HK$4,151,000 or 20%
to approximately HK$24,840,000 compared to last year. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in promotion and marketing expenses for

boosting the Group’s wireless mobile value added services.

The general and administrative expenses were slightly increased by
HK$463,000 or 1% to HK$37,746,000. The increase was mainly attributed

by share-based payments expenses incurred during the year.

The other operating expenses were increased by HK$3,093,000 or
approximately 103% to HK$6,110,000 in 2007. Such increase was due to
the increase in allowance for doubtful debts by HK$3,757,000 and fixed
assets written off for HK$312,000, such increased amount was partly
offset by the decrease in staff costs for the research and development
team by HK$1,055,000.
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A. Operating Results (continued)

Revenue, Gross Profit, Other Income and Operating Expenses
(continued)

The overall operating expenses including selling expenses, general
and administrative expenses, other operating expenses and finance
costs amounted to approximately HK$68,720,000 for this year, which
were increased by HK$7,694,000 or 13% as compared to last year.
The loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$34,489,000, representing an increase of HK$7,309,000 or 27% as

compared to last year.

Financial Position, Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
Ratio

The total equity of the Group as at 31 March 2007 was HK$4,643,000
(2006:HK$20,157,000). The Group had net current liabilities of
HK$3,120,000 as at 31 March 2007 and had net current assets of
HK$13,909,000 as at 31 March 2006. The Group’s current ratio, as a ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 0.8 as at 31 March
2007 (2006: 1.5).

The Group had bank and cash balances including pledged bank deposits
of HK$3,040,000 as at 31 March 2007 (2006: HK$17,469,000). During
the year under review, the Group financed its operations mainly with its
revenue from operations and the net proceeds from the issue of ordinary
shares during year. The Group adheres to a prudent cash and financial
management policy. In order to achieve better cost control and minimize
cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralized and the cash is
generally placed on deposits, mostly denominated in United States dollars,

Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 March 2007, the gearing ratio of the Group, as a ratio of total
borrowings to shareholders’ fund, was 0% (2006: 0%).
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A. Operating Results (continued) A IREZEE (8)
Capital Structure BERERE
The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 28 March 2000. The ARBIBRMRZZEZETTF = A=+ N\BERIEIR
changes of the Company’s capital structure during the year were set out as £ e RRATRFRNZ EREFLEET|AT -
follows.
Top-Up Placing of Existing Shares and Subscription of New Shares LASEEE AT A B E R AR R EFIET AR (7
Pursuant to a placing and subscription agreement dated 18 May 2006, BEZETNFRATN\BZEE RRE R -
51,125,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company were issued AR EERFI AR —BBILE=HRE
by way of top-up placing at the price of HK$0.14 per share for cash to an 51,125,000 R AR EE0. 108 T 2 Lk - AR
independent third party (the “Top-up Placing”). SEREE14BT([RERMEEESIA]) -
The total of 51,125,000 placing shares represent 10% of the Company’s &R DA H£/551,125,0000% @ (EARAFINGLE
issued share capital before the Top-up Placing (511,250,000 ordinary BTSSR 2 B EITARAN (511,250,000 i &
shares) and approximately 9.09% of its enlarged issued share capital of HIR)10% - RARBIEELEERFEEEE
the Company immediately after the Top-up Placing (562,375,000 ordinary BIER 2 B 21T (562,375,000 % &3 1% ) 49
shares). The net proceeds from the Top-up Placing was approximately 9.09% ° L EBIMLEFH 2 EFIBFEOA
HK$7,000,000. The Top-up Placing by transfer of shares was completed 7,000,000 7T © iF iR D 2 L ERITALE
on 25 May 2006 and the top-up subscription was completed on 26 May ERZZTNFRAAZTHATR - MAEEN
2006. As at 31 March 2007, the net proceeds were utilized for general RENER-_ZETNFAA-FTAEK - R=
working capital of the Group. TELF=A=+—08  FIEFEFEEAELR

SEz-REEES -

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate IRIE— L EFTIR (7

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 21 December 2006, 30,000,000 BEZETNFT_A-T—RAZESHH "
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company were issued under RAARBEBE—REERN —ZBLE=F 8T
the general mandate at the price of HK$0.34 per share for cash to an 30,000,000 e A A & R EE0.108 T2 &l
independent third party (the “Placing”). f& - LIRS EMIRIEE0.34E T ([FRRESHE]) -
The total of 30,000,000 placing shares represents approximately 5.33% B & AP A £ 430,000,0000% @ 1EARA TN EH
of the Company’s issued share capital immediately before the Placing fe s EIEFIE 1T A (562,375,000 % & i %)
(562,375,000 ordinary shares) and approximately 5.06% of its enlarged #15.33% * RARAIRBEERESHEELEANZ
issued share capital of the Company immediately after the Placing BT A (592,375,000 A% i 38 B ) #5.06% ©
(592,375,000 ordinary shares). The net proceeds from the Placing was e %18 2 P15 5008 55849 410,000,000 7T ©
approximately HK$10,000,000. The Placing was completed on 29 RESEER T F+AZTNBTK -
December 2006. As at 31 March 2007, approximately HK$7,000,000 out RZZZEEF=A=+—H ' FIEFBFEFD
of the net proceeds were utilized for general working capital of the Group, 7,000,000 TE AIEARERE Y —MEEES -
while the balance was kept in the Group’s bank accounts for general MEABAFERRAEB 2RITF O - fF—RRZE
working capital purposes. BEeRE -

EEbErREeRAT —2rasr 11
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEE5Y

A. Operating Results (continued)

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company has the following
change in capital structure. Pursuant to a convertible subscription
agreement dated 30 April 2007, the Company issued certain five-year
HK$28,800,000 zero-coupon convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”)
under general mandate to a subscriber which is an existing shareholder of
the Company. The Convertible Bonds are convertible into new shares at
the conversion price initially of HK$0.96 per share (subject to adjustment)
at any time from the date falling five years after the date of first issue of the

Convertible Bonds (the “Convertible Bonds Subscription”).

If the holder(s) of the Convertible Bonds exercise the conversion right
attached to the Convertible Bonds in full at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.96 per share, a total of 30,000,000 shares will be issued,
representing about 5.06% of the issued share capital of the Company
before exercise the conversion right and representing approximate 4.82%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by such issue. If the
holder(s) of the Convertible Bonds exercise the conversion right attached
to the Convertible Bonds in full at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.50
per share, a total of 57,600,000 shares will be issued, representing about
9.72% of the issued share capital of the Company before exercise the
conversion right and representing approximate 8.86% of the issued share

capital of the Company as enlarged by such issue.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds was
approximately HK$28,000,000. The Company will use such net proceeds
for general working capital of the Group. The Convertible Bonds

Subscription was completed on 6 June 2007.

Significant Investments and Disposals
There were no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries by the

Company during the year under review.

Foreign Currency Exchange Exposure and Treasury Policies

As most of the Group’s trading transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
were denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars, the impact of the foreign exchange exposure of the Group was
considered to be minimal and there was no significant adverse effect on the
normal operations of the Group. As at 31 March 2007, no related hedges

were made by the Group.
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A. Operating Results (continued)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2007, the Group has no material contingent liabilities. As at
31 March 20086, the Group was granted banking facilities of HK$441,000
that were secured by the Group’s bank deposit of HK$441,000.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The total number of employees of the Group was 109 as at 31 March 2007
(2006: 143). The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by
the performance of individual employees and the market condition. In
addition to salaries, employee benefits included medical scheme, pension

contributions and share option schemes.

. Business Review

This year, the Group is principally engaged in the provision of wireless
mobile value added services including mobile music search services and
the provision of solution integration services. Total revenue decreased by
13% to HK$51,222,000 compared to last year. Revenue from wireless
mobile value added services decreased by 5% to HK$50,241,000
and revenue from solution integration business dropped by 83% to
HK$981,000. In addition, the gross profit margin was 64% in 2007
compared to 52% for the last year. The increase in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the promotion and marketing activities focused on
WAP which contributed a higher gross profit margin and a result of the
decreased costs for content providers by adoption of direct marketing

strategy.
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B. Business Review (continued)

Wireless Mobile Value Added Services

In July 2006, a series of new rules and regulations were implemented by
China telecom operators and Ministry of Information Industry of the PRC
(“MII"), to tighten their supervision over wireless services providers. Such
new policies are used to respond to the complaints from mobile users and
to clear up abusive billing practice among wireless services providers. Such
stringent rules and regulations included requirement of a longer free trial
period to be offered to subscribers, a double confirmation to be required
from new subscribers, and a billing reminder to be delivered to subscribers.
As a result, it negatively impacted wireless value added services business
revenue. During the year, the wireless value added services business
revenue, which included SMS, WAP, VRS and MMS, represented 90% of
the Group's total revenue and recorded about 13% decline in this business
segment, but more than 90% revenue decline occured in the fourth quarter

of this year.

Due to the uncertainties of changing policies and regulations enforced
by China telecom operators and MIl and the currently sluggish wireless
mobile value added services business environment in the PRC, the Group
faced a lot of pressure and anticipated that such dreadful situation would
depress the wireless value added services market in the coming year. In
February 2007, the Group determined to cease its services in SMS, WAP,
IVRS and MMS due to the above-mentioned reasons. The Board is fully
supportive of this business restructuring and focusing on the development
of the wireless mobile search services business. In line with the business
restructuring, the Group closed the mobile value added team completely
by the end of March 2007. At the same time, the Group recorded additional
costs as the Group had to provide for adequate allowance for doubtful
debts regarding the accounts receivables of mobile value added services
aged over six months and written off obsolete fixed assets in this business

sector.
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B. Business Review (continued)

Mobile Intelligent Navigation Engine

Through a series of testing in nationwide music search platform and
following almost a year’s discussion with China Mobile in 2006, the MINE
search technology was endorsed by China Mobile as the exclusive music
search engine nationwide. In January 2007, Unison, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has formally signed an agreement with China
Mobile for their cooperation on wireless music search services in the PRC.
Unison has become the sole provider for wireless music search services on
China Mobile’s central music platform over the country and its nationwide
mobile music search services was launched successfully in the fourth
quarter of this financial year. The Group first recorded revenue from its
wireless mobile music search services in the first quarter of this financial
year. Total revenue of HK$4,046,000 was recorded and it accounted for

8% of the Group’s total revenue in this financial year.

During the year, the Group established an information center and music
search platform in Cheng Du in order to facilitate the team to launch
wireless music search services to all provinces in China. Currently, the
number of music search users climbed to around 37 million and the
number of user growth is expected to be strong in the coming quarters
through the implementation of mobile music search services enrichment
and diversification, launching numerous promotion and marketing
campaign and strengthening the cooperation with the major business

partner, China Mobile.

Over the past few months, the Group focused on strengthening its sales
and marketing team as the scale and scope of its business expanded in
China. The team strives to stimulate the music search penetration rate both
in the volume of SMS and the music download rate in major provinces or
cities, such as Guangdong, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Beijing, Sichuan,
Fujian and Shandong etc. Currently, the team has been aggressively
launching promotion campaign through newspapers and magazines,
frequent radio advertisements and cooperation with some famous
China portal companies. Through the strategies of extended distribution
channels, mobile music search services and products differentiation,
and various promotional activities, the team believes that it will gain more

market share.
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEE5Y

B. Business Review (continued)

Mobile Intelligent Navigation Engine (continued)

In response to the market demand, the Group will continue to optimize and
upgrade its intelligent navigation engine, enhance the development and
product design capability for characterized various mobile search services,
and to improve its music search platform system. In the second half of
2007, the Group will continue to enhance the brand awareness of China
Mobile Monternet Color Ring Back Tone number 12530 and music search

services competitiveness, and strengthen the Group’s sales channels.

The Group believes that it will continue to grow with the comprehensive

cooperation with China Mobile and the planned marketing activities.

Outlook

Fiscal year 2007 brings the Group both new challenges and opportunities.
Although business enviroment remained adverse in the latter half year, the
Group put tremendous effort to consolidate its position in the highly potential

and growing areas of wireless mobile search services.

The strong demand driven forces in the PRC mobile users market enable the
Group to realize its growth momentum through its well-established extensive
distribution channels, management experience and expertise. The Group will
continue to focus its marketing efforts on expanding mobile search market
share in China and explore its application in other potential sectors such as
advertising business. The Group seeks to further develop the advertising
segment by using its wireless mobile search resources. The responses from

the mobile users have been very positive.

At the same time, the Group will continue to put efforts in implementing
a budget control system and to construct an expense status feedback
mechanism over overall operational expenses for all teams. Regarding the
financial management, the Group will put extra effort in the control and
management of account receivables in order to have better control on the
operating risks. Besides, the Group will conduct performance evaluation
for each department in accordance to the needs of development, so as
to improve the management efficiency and maximize the return for the

shareholders.

The management believes music search services will bring in remarkable
revenue and profit starting from the coming quarters of 2007. The Group has
positive expectations for mobile search services industry in the PRC market

and plans to strive to capitalize on this industry momentum.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

B. 7%/l (4)

BEERERSIZEE)

REETSHER - AEEHEEE(C B EE
BRERSIZ BRAZEFEBBERRB M
BEREMRAED  URMNEASTLERTER
o RZTELFTHEF - XEEBEERAS
BB B AR LR TS 12530 2 Mg MEE - 8.
SHERRB T - WILRAEE 2 HER
o

REBERE  BEEPEBEB A ERATE
ZhiGERERY - AEEREEITK -

23]

—TTRLFUBFER/AEETRAUE LR -
BETHEZEZBRRENATRR - ELXKECDE
HEBEEMEABNL EAIE R BEBEHERR
TR Z AL

RPBZBHRPHERBRYMEE T - BEAEES
NHEBERERAZDHEREREELRLEENE -
EREEREHE - ARBRBESTETIGHER
PREAERPEBPRRME2EEE  TRR
BBHRRRENEMBEENZBH(WESER) 2
e - AEBERFEBEREEGBHRRERE
—FSEREEDH - BBHAP 2 REGAKIER -

BRI - REEAEBIRNERABTIEEES
R WA EK BRREERXEL—ERX
AR EEES - P BEEMT - AEEFEARN
FEM PR Z 2RI R BRI H - AR A i 2B
B o SN - AEBERRIRERTEM S GPTET
RBFFHE - UREEBR XA BRREREAZE

% -

BEERE SREERBEHE ST LERRF
ERRSRATB WS KRR - REBHPETISZ
BPOHRIWEENALEME  WBBNNEE
BT 2558 -



Directors and Senior Management EELX SR EEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Heon Wai, aged 46, is a founder of the Group, the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director of the Company, in charge of the overall
corporate strategies and business development of the Group. He is also an
authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Yip holds a bachelor degree in
applied computer science from lllinois State University in USA. Mr. Yip is a son
of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group’s former Chairman and a brother of Mr. Yip
Heon Keung, an existing executive Director and Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a former

executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, aged 37, is an executive Director of the Company, in
charge of strategic alliances with business partners of the Group. He is also
the Compliance Officer, an authorised representative and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.Yip is a graduate of Program
for Management Development from Harvard University and holds a bachelor
degree in electrical engineering from the University Wisconsin-Madison, USA.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yip worked in a software-consulting firm as a
consultant in the USA. He has been with the Group since October 1996. Mr.
Yip is a son of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group’s former Chairman and a brother
of Mr. Yip Heon Wai, an existing executive Director and Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a

former executive Director of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Xu Zhiming, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company in June 2007. Dr. Xu received a doctoral degree in Economics from
University of Manchester in England in 1993, a master degree in Economics
from China Academy of Social Sciences in 1986, and a bachelor degree in
Physics from Peking University in 1983. Dr. Xu is currently a partner of CBC
Partners, L.P. (“CBC”). From 2002 to 2005, Dr. Xu was a senior advisor of
Tom Group Limited and an executive director and chief operating officer of
Tom Online Inc. Dr. Xu has extensive experience in investment banking and

corporate management.
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Directors and Senior Management EELX SR EEE

Mr. Zhang Ying, aged 32, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company in June 2007. Mr. Zhang received a master degree in business
administration from China Europe International Business School in 2005 and
a bachelor degree in finance from Tsinghua University in 1997. Mr. Zhang is
currently a partner of CBC. Prior to joining CBC, Mr. Zhang served as the
general manager of the capital market department of China Netcom Group
Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited, and the general manager of the Operations
Department and the Financing and M&A Department of China Netcom Limited
since July 2000. From August 1997 to June 2000, Mr. Zhang was a consultant
of McKinsey & Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. James T. Siano, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2000. He is also the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr Siano holds a master degree in
business administration from Pace University, USA and is the president and the
chief executive officer of Montblanc Pacific Distributors Ltd. which is the Asia
Pacific regional headquarters for the Montblanc brand. Prior to that, Mr. Siano
was the managing director of Swatch Group of Switzerland (Hong Kong) Ltd.

Mr. Siano has extensive experience in the sales, marketing and finance field.

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine, aged 36, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in January 2005. She is also a member of
the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. She graduated from the Northern lllinois University, USA with
a bachelor degree in Computer Science. Ms. Tse is currently employed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of a prestigious bank in Hong Kong. Prior to that, she

had worked in the software application field for more than 10 years.

Ms. Lai May Lun, age 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2006. She is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. She graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in social
science and a master degree in business administration. Ms. Lai is currently
a project manager of a China business company in Hong Kong. Prior to that,
she had been the administration manager of a charitable foundation in Hong
Kong. Further back, she had worked for the Hong Kong Telecommunications
Limited for more than 20 years and had extensive experience in various areas

of telecommunications.
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Directors and Senior Management EER SR EEE

Senior Management

Ms. Cheung Ka Yee joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company in 2005, in charge of the Group’s overall
financial matters. Ms. Cheung holds a diploma in accountancy and a master
degree in business administration (Financial Services) from Hong Kong. She
is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Cheung has

extensive experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and finance field.

Ms. Lo Oi Ling joined the Group in 2002 as the Company Secretary of the
Company, in charge of the Group’s overall company secretarial matters. Ms.
Lo holds a master degree in business administration from the United Kingdom
and is a member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Ms. Lo has extensive

experience in the company secretarial field.
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Report of the Directors EEg#{E

The directors (the “Directors”) of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) are pleased to present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2007.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements. There were no changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends
The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2007 and the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 45 to 92.

The board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2007.

Summary Financial Information

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of

the Group for the last five financial years.

REMBEBRERAR(ARARDES(EFDRK
AREBREZMERARARAEEBE—_TT L
FZA=t—BLFEZEELHBRE -

ETERK
ARAZEBEBRBEALRE - SXEMBARZ

T EEHEEARYBERIE 18 7 - A%
2 F BRI AW ANE -

RERKE
FEERE-TTLF-AS+ - BULFEZEA
RADREREEEY A2 HBERRBRE6HE

FRHZHBRERA -

EEeTERHEE_STtF-A=1+—HIF
FEREAT RIS, o

MBERRE

FEEBELEVRFECTIBZREREERE
BEREWT

Results E
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HILEE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—BELE -TTAF -ZTRF -TINGF -TTSF
FHT FHETT FHET FH&T FHBT
Turnover X 51,222 59,050 54,791 84,596 31,692
Loss before tax BRELATIEE (34,769) (27,454) (33,109) (40,198) (112,828)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,/ (Fx) 280 274 1,300 (922) 2,290
Loss for the year attributable to RATEEFEA

equity holders of the Company FEIEFAETE (34,489) (27,180) (31,809) (41,120) (110,538)
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Summary Financial Information (continued) BEEREE @
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—EELFE —FEXF —TTRF —TETNF —FTET=F
FHT FHEIT TFHET FH&TT FHETT
Fixed assets BE&EE 4,732 5,007 4,415 2,872 5,779
Intangible asset B EE - - - - 5,922
Deposits HES 2,274 503 716 2,484 1,092
Club debentures 2 ES - - 732 420 420
Available-for-sale financial assets At &S REEE 757 738 - - -
Current assets REVEE 13,170 43,006 62,623 102,949 129,556
Current liabilities mEaE (16,290) (29,097) (21,847) (30,388) (23,628)
Non-current liabilities ERBHEE - - - (93) -
Net assets BEFE 4,643 20,157 46,639 78,244 119,141
Share capital (&N 59,237 51,125 51,125 51,125 51,125
Reserves s (54,594) (30,968) (4,486) 27,119 68,016
4,643 20,157 46,639 78,244 119,141
Fixed Assets EEEE

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set

out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital during

AEBETEERFRAZESHFBHARTHERE
MEE16 ©

AR R

ARBEEBRARFEAMERE - SRITRARE

the year. Details of movements in the issued share capital and share options RN ERN T BEEEREIER D BER B RE
during the year, together with reasons therefore, are set out in notes 26 and 27 Wiz 26 K 27 °

respectively to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights BhESR

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being
the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige

the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or

sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2007, the Company had no reserve available for distribution
as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2001 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium
account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium account

may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 79% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 41%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 67 % of the total purchases for the year and purchases

from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 35%.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their associates,
nor any shareholders who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or
five largest suppliers during the year except that two shareholders of one of
the five largest suppliers are the father-in-law and sister-in-law of Mr. Yip Heon

Ping, a Director and major shareholder of the Company.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2007 were as

follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Seng Mun (Chairman)

Mr. Yip Heon Wai (Managing Director)
Mr. Yip Heon Ping

Mr. Yip Heon Keung

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. James T. Siano

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine

Ms. Lai May Lun

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Yip Seng Mun retired from the
office of an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Yip Heon
Ping retired from the office of an executive Director of the Company. Dr. Xu
Zhiming and Mr. Zhang Ying have been appointed as non-executive Directors
of the Company and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, an existing executive Director of the
Company, has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board, all with effect
from 6 June 2007.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Yip Heon Wai
and Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”).

Dr. Xu Zhiming and Mr. Zhang Ying were appointed pursuant to article 112 of
the Articles of Association, will hold office until the AGM and, being eligible, wil

offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Independent Non-executive Directors’ Confirmations of
Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of its independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2003 (the “Service
Contracts”) which were renewed automatically each year for successive terms
of one year subject to termination by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other party. Pursuant to the supplemental
agreements entered into between each executive Director and the Company
on 1 April 2004, the terms of the Service Contracts were extended for a fixed
term of three years commencing from 1 April 2004 and were expired on 31
March 2007, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association. Otherwise than as amended by the
supplemental agreements, all other provisions of the Service Contracts remain

in full force and effect.

Mr. James T. Siano entered into a letter of appointment with the Company as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 7 March 2000. He
was not appointed for a specific term but was subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association. Pursuant to a
supplemental letter signed between Mr. Siano and the Company on 1 January
2005, his term of appointment was fixed for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2005, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Otherwise than as amended by
the supplemental letter which formed part of the appointment letter, the terms
and conditions contained in the appointment letter remain in full force and

effect.

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine has renewed the letter of appointment with the
Company as an independent non-executive Director of the Company for a term
of one year commencing from 1 January 2007 and is subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Ms. Lai May Lun has renewed the letter of appointment with the Company as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 1 March 2007 and is subject to retirement by rotation and

re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.
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Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors being proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with the Company in respect of his/her
service to the Company in the capacity of a Director which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Except as detailed in note 33 to the financial statements, no Director had
a material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed

during the year.

EECRBEH @
B ERES - RRRRBFAS LERSE ES

HBARNRMETLREUNEE SO RARREHER
B2 EARBE K (ETBERR RN —FARRMN
BB CEERERIN) TIARIEZAL) o

ESCaER

BRI TS MR RE B3 PTRFAL & S - BBV EIA
ARRREEFAMBRARREARRL - BHAEHE
ZEBBEAZEARNTHRAERIREERE

3z

ik

FRAABIT NG AEREEREEREEREY
BERBAEBZEH -

RERRERERAT —TTrEFR 2D




26

Report of the Directors EEg#{E

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Company, to be notified to the

Company and the Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

Capacity and

nature of interest

Name of Director Note FH K
EEpnA B EE FEmME
Mr. Yip Heon Ping (1) Object of a discretionary family trust &
e interest of a controlled corporation
PRREEFCEHR K

SNk v

Mr. Yip Seng Mun 2) Founder of a discretionary family trust &
HERERSE interest of controlled corporations
PRRIEEFTZEIPFAR

SR VNG £

Mr. Yip Heon Keung ()] Interest of a controlled corporation
HmagkE Sl VNG T
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares are held by Greenford Company Limited, Century Technology Holding
Limited and Bakersfield Global Corporation as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust, The
Century Unit Trust and The Bakersfield Unit Trust, respectively. All the units of which
are held by Ace Central Group Limited as the trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a
discretionary family trust established with Mr. Yip Heon Ping as one of the discretionary

objects for the time being.

Among these shares, 155,931,035 shares held by Greenford Company Limited as
trustee mentioned above. The entire issued share capital in Greenford Company Limited
is held by Mr. Yip Heon Ping.

(2) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Seng Mun, being the settlor and the founder of The New

Millennium Trust, is deemed to be interested in the 404,280,619 shares of the Company.

Among these shares, 155,931,035 shares held by Century Technology Holding Limited
and 92,418,549 shares held by Bakersfield Global Corporation as trustees mentioned
above. The entire issued share capital in each of Century Technology Holding Limited

and Bakersfield Global Corporation is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Seng Mun.

(8)  Mr. Yip Heon Keung is the sole director and sole shareholder of Ace Central Group

Limited, the trustee of The New Millennium Trust as mentioned above.

(4)  Based on 592,375,000 shares in issue as at 31 March 2007.

EERNRA HEROREFZERER
KA ()

PiazE -

(1) ZZER 1 B Greenford Company Limited * Century
Technology Holding Limited }2Bakersfield Global
Corporation# 5l EAThe Greenford Unit Trust * The
Century Unit Trust X The Bakersfield Unit TrustZ 5
ABOEE  ZEEFEZMAERIGHAAce Central
Group LimitedAThe New Millennium TrustZ ZEEA &
D¥4E  MThe New Millennium Trust /3 & B LA [A) F
FERHP— R 2 RHAEHRMRZ2ERIKET -

ZE M 155,931,085 % % 19 Fa Greenford Company
Limited JA £t & 58 A & 19 %5 A ° Greenford Company
Limited 2 2802 B TIRABER TR ERE ©

(2 REEF KB E % The New Millennium Trust
ZRYARBPHAEBEREEREABBEARQA
404,280,619 IR A& 15 2 1%

Z % Bk 5 - 155,931,085 % A% 1) 92,418,549 i%
f% 19 % 5! & Century Technology Holding Limited &
Bakersfield Global Corporation JA _F it 52 5 A & 15 #%
A ° Century Technology Holding Limited & Bakersfield
Global Corporation & B 2 2 2B 81T AN HERE
RGEERHEAE -

(3) E 3% 5k 4 A Ace Central Group Limited 2 1 — & =
NME—REE 1M Ace Central Group Limited & _Eift The

New Millennium Trust 2 ZFEA ©

@) BER-ZTLE=F=+—HDB3%17.2592,375,000
BERRDFTE -
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continued)

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are

separately disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial personal equity
interests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company solely for
the purpose of complying with the requirement for the minimum number of

shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the Directors of
the Company had registered an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above and in the
share option schemes disclosures in note 27 to the financial statements,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their spouse or

minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share Option Schemes

Concerning the share options granted to the Directors, employees and others
as detailed in note 27 to the financial statements, the Directors do not consider
it appropriate to disclose a theoretical value of the share options granted,
because in the absence of a readily available market value for share options on
the ordinary shares of the Company, the Directors were unable to arrive at an

accurate assessment of the value of the share options.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2007, shareholders (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or

which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

TERRZEZRAR

RIZZELF=ZA=+—H0 REARERNHKIEH
B AR S A ERDIEXVEFE2 R E3D
M2 GEXARARBRE - HALHER AR BRE
EH LB GRDIFE36RET 2 BELM 2 ARF R
SRR 2 ERIRBE ZBR (AR EEHTE

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder Note
BRERE B 5E
Greenford Company Limited (1)

Century Technology Holding Limited  (2)

Bakersfield Global Corporation 3

Ace Central Group Limited 4)
(as trustee of The New
Millennium Trust)
(BA The New Millennium Trust

ZEFEAED)
Knicks Capital Inc. 5)
Mr. Zhang Xingsheng (5) & (6)
REEA S
Tallmany Enterprises Limited (7)

TRABRIN IS
RARERB AR

Percentage of

the Company’s

issued share

capital

Note (8)

Capital and Number of LA FE]

nature of interest ordinary shares BRITRA

0k R Bkt

ERtE RGHEAR FI7E(8)

Directly beneficially owned 155,931,035 26.325%
BEEERHR

Directly beneficially owned 155,931,035 26.325%
BEREERHEE

Directly beneficially owned 92,418,549 15.60%
BEEERHR

Trustee of a discretionary 404,280,619 68.25%
family trust & through
controlled corporations
ERFRKIERZZEAREBR
SEHI A

Directly beneficially owned 51,125,000 8.63%
BEEERHE
Beneficially owned & through

a controlled corporation 51,625,000 8.71%
Hi B AR
—RARESI AT

Directly beneficially owned 30,000,000 5.06%
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders

(continued)

Notes:

(1)

The entire issued share capital of Greenford Company Limited is held by Mr. Yip Heon

Ping, a Director of the Company.

The entire issued share capital of Century Technology Holding Limited is beneficially

owned by Mr. Yip Seng Mun, a Director of the Company.

The entire issued share capital of Bakersfield Global Corporation is beneficially owned by

Mr. Yip Seng Mun, a Director of the Company.

An aggregate of 404,280,619 shares are held through Greenford Company Limited,
Century Technology Holding Limited and Bakersfield Global Corporation as trustees
of The Greenford Unit Trust, The Century Unit Trust and The Bakersfield Unit Trust,
respectively. All the units of which are held by Ace Central Group Limited as the trustee
of The New Millennium Trust, a discretionary family trust established with Mr. Yip Seng
Mun as the founder and Mr. Yip Heon Ping as one of the discretionary objects for the

time being.

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, a Director of the Company, is the sole director and sole shareholder

of Ace Central Group Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Knicks Capital Inc. is held by Mr. Zhang Xingsheng.

Mr. Zhang Xingsheng is also personally interested in 500,000 shares of the Company.

China Broadband Capital partners, L.P., a fund established in the Caymand Islands as
an exempted limited partnership (the “Fund”), holds the entire issued share capital of
Tallmany Enterprises Limited. CBC Parnters, L.P. (“CBC Partners”) holds approximately
1.01% of the issues share capital of the Fund, which in turn is ultimately wholly owned

by Mr. Edward Tian indirectly.

Based on 592,375,000 shares in issue as at 31 March 2007.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders

(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) have any
interests in a business which competes or may compete with the business of

the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Details of the significant event which has taken place subsequent to the

balance sheet date are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
In response to specific enquiry made by the Company, each of the Directors
gave confirmation that he/she complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2007.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) on 7 March
2000 and has formulated and from time to time amended its written terms of
reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code on Corporate

Governance Practices.

The existing Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. James T. Siano (Chairman of the Audit

Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures,
review of the Group's financial information and review of the relationship with
the auditors of the Company. Regular meetings have been held by the Audit
Committee since its establishment. The Audit Committee held four meetings

during the year under review.

The Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who are of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the GEM Listing

Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the GEM Listing Rules based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the

Directors of the Company.
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Auditors ZEEm

Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler (“RSM”) retire and, being eligible, offer ~ ZEHRE@ AT EHRE]) BRI EFEERL
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-  FEEEET - AR RIKARRFBEF AL LIRERE

appoint RSM as the auditors of the Company. R BEIERBRERANRZIZEEAED
On Behalf of the Board REESFE

Yip Heon Wai FE

Chairman Emg

Hong Kong BB

21 June 2007 ZET+FRAZ+—H
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Corporate Governance Report tEERFE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance with a view to assuring the conduct of management of the
Company as well as protecting the interests of all shareholders. The good
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis a quality board for
leadership and control of the Company, effective internal controls, transparency

and accountability to all shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM

Listing Rules (“Code on CG Practices”) during the year under review.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors (“Directors”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiry made by the Company, each
of the Directors gave confirmation that he/she complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2007.

Board of Directors

Composition

During the year under review, the board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. All
Directors gave sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2007. Each executive Director has sufficient experience

to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)

In full compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company, during the year under review, had in place three independent non-
executive Directors and at least one of whom has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. They
contribute to the Company with diversified industry expertise, advise the
management on strategy development and ensure that the Board maintains
high standard of financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the Company as a whole. The Company has received, from each of
the independent non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company

considers all of its independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Yip Seng Mun retired from the office
of as an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Yip Heon
Ping retired from the office of as an executive Director of the Company. Dr. Xu
Zhiming and Mr. Zhang Ying have been appointed as non-executive Directors
of the Company and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, an existing executive Director of the
Company, has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board, all with effect
from 6 June 2007. As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent

non-executive Directors.

The names, biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among
them are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of this

annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. At least 14 days notice of all
board meetings were given to all Directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the meeting, and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations regarding the meetings are observed. The
finalised agenda and accompanying board papers are then sent to all Directors

prior to the meeting.

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Board held four regular full board

meetings. The individual attendance record of each Director is as follows:

BEEEM)
E=ges
EEOURSEEAARAMEFRASIAEES
SRBNAEE  AEES QSNSRI BES
BHEL1ARBRN  SESHARSESRERN

IATRFE - ARWEBMEFRREEZERE
THEREESRZMERERARETHCESE
REETE 2RI RN 2 EE S XM RERR A

1
o

BE_ZTHF=-A=+—"HILFE EFSHE
HARMNABEFEER - SEFREHREER

ZRRERIAR

Directors Attendance
= H R 8
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Yip Seng Mun (Chairman) HERERLE(FE) 4/4
Mr. Yip Heon Wai (Managing Director) AR (EFARHE) 3/4
Mr. Yip Heon Ping Em¥is 3/4
Mr. Yip Heon Keung L 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUkHITES

Mr. James T. Siano James T. Siano 5£ 4 4/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine HAR L 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun Rt 4/4

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, both Mr. Yip Seng Mun and Mr. Yip
Heon Ping ceased to be Directors of the Company. Dr. Xu Zhiming and Mr.
Zhang Ying have been appointed as non-executive Directors of the Company
and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, an existing executive Director of the Company, has been

appointed as the Chairman of the Board, all with effect from 6 June 2007.

Apart from the regular board meetings of the year, the Board met on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter was required.
The Directors would receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes

of committee meetings in advance of each board meeting.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and formulated
the overall strategies of the Company, monitored financial performances
and discussed the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as

discussed and decided on other significant matters.

The Company Secretary recorded the proceedings of each board meeting in
detail by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Draft
board minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and approval as
soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection to
Directors at any reasonable time on their request. All Directors have access
to relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman ensures that
management will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant

information in a timely manner.

Delegation by the Board

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman, is responsible for the
approval and monitoring of Group-wide strategies and policies, approval of
annual budgets and business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group,
and oversight of management. The day-to-day operations of the Group are
delegated to the management under the leadership of the Managing Director.
The Managing Director, working with the executive management team of each
operational unit, is responsible for managing the businesses of the Group,

including implementation of strategies adopted by the Board.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a service contract with the
Company. All independent non-executive Directors have formal letters of
appointment setting out key terms and conditions relative to their appointment
and subject to re-election. Details of the term of appointment of the Directors
are disclosed in the section “Directors’ Service Contracts” of the Report of the

Directors in this annual report.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a package of orientation
materials detailing the duties and responsibilities of directors under the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company’s articles of association (“Articles of Association”),

related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong Kong.

Every Director is aware that, before accepting appointment as a director,
he/she must be able to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the

Company.

Under the provision A.4.2 of the Code on CG Practices, all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment and every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 July 2006, a special
resolution was passed by the shareholders of the Company to approve the
amendments to the Articles of Association to ensure compliance with the
Code on CG Practices. Pursuant to the amended provisions of the Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to
but not exceeding one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Chairman and the Managing Director

To improve independency and divisions of functions, the roles of Chairman and
the Managing Director of the Company are segregated and are not exercised

by the same individual during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Chairman, Mr. Yip Seng Mun, was
responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively and smoothly. In
doing so, the Chairman ensured that good corporate governance practices
and procedures were established and followed, and that all Directors were
properly briefed and received all relevant information prior to each meeting. The
Chairman was also responsible for overseeing the implementation of corporate

strategies of the Company.

During the year under review, Mr. Yip Heon Wai assumed the role of the
Managing Director of the Company. He is responsible for overseeing the day-

to-day operations of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the Code on CG Practices, the Company established
its remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) on 17 June 2005
with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The Remuneration
Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors of the
Company, namely Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (Chairman of the Remuneration),

Ms. Lai May Lun and one executive Director, Mr. Yip Heon Keung.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior management by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to

time.

During the year under review, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held on 23 June 2006 for reviewing and discussing the policy for remuneration
of Directors and the senior management. The individual attendance record of

each Remuneration Committee member is as follows:
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Remuneration Committee (continued) FHZEEE (B

Members Attendance
Z8 HFERE
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (Committee Chairman) HARTZLT(ZEESFE) 11
Ms. Lai May Lun REMmMET T 1/1
Mr. Yip Heon Keung EmaEitE 1/1
Nomination of Directors EERA

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board is
responsible for considering the suitability of a candidate to act as a Director,
and approving and recommending the terminating of the appointment of a

Director.

The Chairman is mainly responsible for identifying suitable candidates for
members of the Board when there is a vacancy or an additional Director
is considered necessary. The Chairman will propose the appointment of
such candidates to each member of the Board for consideration and each
member of the Board will review the qualifications of the relevant candidates
for determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his qualifications,
experience and background. The decision of appointing a Director must
be approved unanimously by the members of the Board and make

recommendation to the shareholders’ meeting for approval.

The Company currently does not have any plan to set up a Nomination

Committee considering the small size of the Board.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) on 7
March 2000 and has formulated and from time to time amended its written
terms of reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code on
CG Practices. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the Company’s website. The existing Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. James T.
Siano (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and Ms.

Lai May Lun.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures,
review of the Group’s financial information and review of the relationship with

the auditors of the Company.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The  EBZZLZELENRBBEFERITNANDH - BEZELE
individual attendance record of each Audit Committee member is as follows: gEKESEEHEERRHUT

Members Attendance
£B5 HERE
Mr. James T. Siano (Committee Chairman) James T. Siano L £ (ZE 2 F/E) 4/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine #ABLZL 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun REMEZ LT 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited annual results
during the year ended 31 March 2007 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that

adequate disclosure has been made.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering and
reviewing the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-audit

functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

During the year under review, the Group was required to pay an aggregate
of HK$460,000 to the external auditors for their audit services. There was no
significant non-audit service assignment undertaken by the external auditor

during the year.

Directors’ and Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial

statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Messrs. RSM Nelson
Wheeler, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the

Group are set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

Internal Control

During the year under review, the Board conducted a review of its system of
internal control periodically to ensure it is effective and adequate. The Board
convened meetings periodically to discuss financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. The Directors are of the view that the

existing system of internal control is effective and adequate to the Group.

Investor Relations

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules. The Directors convene the annual general

meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer to their enquiries.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The Directors, Company Secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond to inquiries from

shareholders and investors on a timely basis.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & #% EET R &

RSM Nelson Wheeler
E R OE BN T

Certified Public Accountants

To the shareholders of
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosten Technology
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 45 to 92, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2007, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2007 and of
the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 June 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement HREEH &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

2007 2006

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

—ETF —ETRF

MI5E FH&T T

Turnover [ 20 6 51,222 59,050

Cost of sales SHER A (18,413) (28,230)

Gross profit EF 32,809 30,820

Other income EAbUgA 7 1,142 2,752

Selling expenses SHEERE S (24,840) (20,689)

General and administrative expenses — MR RATES (37,746) (37,283)

Other operating expenses R A (6,110) (3,017)

Loss from operations B EE (34,745) (27,417)

Finance costs WS ER 9 (24) 37)

Loss before tax RRFiATET 18 (34,769) (27,454)

Income tax credit e 10 280 274

Loss for the year attributable to equity AATEZEEA

holders of the Company EEFREE 11&14 (34,489) (27,180)
Loss per share SREE 15

Basic AR (HK6.1) (HK5.3)

cents Al cents &1l

Diluted e N/A N/A

i A N3 B
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 8 ¥ EEBEXR

At 31 March 2007 R =FEF+F=A=+—H

2007 2006
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
—ETLHF —ETRF
E=: FExT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets EEEBE 16 4,732 5,007
Deposits Hic 2,274 503
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 17 757 738
7,763 6,248
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 19 - 323
Trade receivables FEUBR R 20 6,469 20,435
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FEf5E ~ 514 & H b U 1A 3,659 4,314
Financial assets at fair value through BN EEYER RIEERR
profit or loss B SREE 2 465
Pledged bank deposits BIEARITIEK 24 - 441
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRS 48R 21 3,040 17,028
13,170 43,006
Current liabilities RBAaE
Trade payables FEAT BRI 22 8,470 11,841
Current tax liabilities EHHIEAR 328 608
Amounts due to directors ERNEE A 23 523 7,448
Amount due to a senior officer EN—2s R E 2 ZIE 23 - 1,624
Accruals, deposits received and FEETFIE - EWETR
other payables K E A FRIE 6,969 7,576
16,290 29,097
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(AE) BEERE (3,120) 13,909
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,643 20,157
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 26 59,237 51,125
Reserves (e 28 (54,594) (30,968)
TOTAL EQUITY RERHAE 4,643 20,157

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2007

KEFGR _TTLFA-+—HLE

Yip Heon Wai
Chairman

RE#E
FE

Yip Heon Keung

Director

ESD

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity sR& XS XK

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

Reserves
1
Foreign
Issued Share Statutory currency  Share-based
share premium reserve translation payments  Accumulated
capital account fund reserve reserve losses
2% R EER SHMEE Ripax Zit  Sub-total Total
fIRA RER EEe e R 5] gt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR T TEL TAR T TATL TAR T
At 1 April 2005 RZZZRFNA-H 51,125 339,275 53 539 - (344,353) (4,486) 46,639
Exchange differences arising on GEBNIBARRA
consolidation of overseas MEEZEREZER
subsidiaries and net income WERERRER
recognised directly in equity ZWNFE = - - 415 - - 415 415
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (27,180) (27,180) (27,180)
Total recognised income and FRRARAR
expense for the year gt - - - 45 - (27,180) (26,765) (26,765)
Recognition of share-based AR
payments P=YNE - - - - 283 - 283 283
At 31 March 2006 R=EEAE=A=1-H 51,125 339,275 53 954 283 (371,533) (30,968) 20,157
Exchange differences arising on GABINIBAT
consolidation of overseas REMEAL
subsidiaries BHER - - - 972 - - 72 972
Share issue expenses (note 26) BATRORF (i 26) - (361) - - - - (361) (361)
Net income recognised directly WEREREAL
in equity WAFE - (361) - 72 - - 611 611
Loss for the year FRER - = - - - (34,489) (34,489) (34,489)
Total recognised income and ERBAMAR
expense for the year Fx 28 - (361) - 72 - (34,489) (33,878) (33,878)
Issue of shares (note 26) BT (MzE26) 8,112 9,245 - - - - 9,245 17,357
Recognition of share-based AR
payments RARR - - - - 1,007 - 1,007 1,007
Transfer ag = = = = (86) 86 - -
At 31 March 2007 R-ETtE=f=1-H 50287 348,159 53 1926 1,204 (405,936) (54,504) 4643
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Z&8HERE R
For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FFT+F=H=+—HI FE

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—eBLE  —TITAA
FET FiBT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZEXBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BriR A8 (34,769) (27,454)
Adjustments for: KA TFRIE
Share-based payments LAREAR B AN 3R 1,007 283
Finance costs VB ER 24 37
Interest income F 2 WA (300) (918)
Investment income BEUWA (347) (406)
Gain on disposals of fixed assets & BlE & E e (63) 4)
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEZRA T EEVRRERRE
at fair value through profit or loss BRiE 7 & RbE E W (21) (25)
Depreciation e 2,282 1,835
Fixed assets written off & 7E & EE A 312 =
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts RER &K [E] B = (1,218)
Allowance for doubtful debts AR 3,836 79
Inventories written off FEME 30 -
Operating loss before working capital changes 18 & 4 & B Al 2 & & 518 (28,009) (27,791)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and e kAHHESR
available-for-sale financial assets B (), (1,790) 207
Decrease in inventories FERD 203 2,641
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEMBR FR A (38 0) 1,058 (2,113)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits TERFRIA -~ Rl & REAMERGRIA
and other receivables R 655 2,432
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BAFEEYR &R EERRETRE
through profit or loss ZEBMEBEERD 484 1,120
Decrease in trade payables FETBRROR > (3,371) (1,025)
Increase in amounts due to directors FERTEE 2 FRIBE I 211 7,448
Increase in amount due to a senior officer BN — BB B 2 SRR N 312 1,624
Decrease in accruals, deposits received FERTRUE - BEWET R EAM
and other payables FERFER A (607) (418)
Cash used in operations ARKEEB 2R (30,764) (15,879)
Interest received BFE 300 918
Investment income received BUIRE WA 347 406
Interest paid BFE (24) 37)
Overseas taxes paid BEINIR = (12)
Net cash used in operating activities BB A 2 &/F 58 (30,141) (14,600)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued) ZERERE R (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - EZE+4#=H=+—HI F/F

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—ETF ZETRF
FET FH&TT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBZ2HRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets BAERTEE (2,158) (2,146)
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets & B E B EFTS 508 71 10
Release of pledged bank deposits fERR B I IRIRITIE 5K aM 3
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBEB A 2R FH (1,646) (2,133)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®E#¥KHEHKE
ACTIVITIES
Capital element of finance BEHESNHES 2 ANeED
lease rental payments = (93)
Net proceeds from issue of shares BRI PG FRIE 58 16,996 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEBE(BA) 2B &F8
financing activities 16,996 (93)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HReRBELEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS WL HE (14,791) (16,826)
Exchange differences EHZER 803 340
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOZRERASEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,028 33,514
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBAERASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 3,040 17,028
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND REeRBASEEYIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIB & ek 3,040 17,028
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Balance Sheet EE& &%

At 31 March 2007 R =FEF+F=A=+—H

2007 2006
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
—geLtE —TT A
MosE TET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB AR 2R 18 5,809 20,900
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{S3XIE - 514 K& H b EU K IE 199 209
Bank and cash balances IRITMIRE A5 10 9
209 218
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEETFRIE N H b FE T 3R 1E 1,433 968
Net current liabilities nBEERE (1,224) (750)
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,585 20,150
Capital and reserves EARR#iE
Share capital R& A 26 59,237 51,125
Reserves 1 28 (54,652) (30,975)
TOTAL EQUITY s 4,585 20,150

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2007

REEFGN _TTLF A+ —BHHE

Yip Heon Wai
Chairman

ESL
£
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Yip Heon Keung
Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf##{ &k Kz

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+4#=H=+—HIFF

General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Century Yard, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of business is Room
1506, 15/F., Tai Tung Building, 8 Fleming Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of its subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to its
operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2006. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and amounts reported for the

current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The application of these new HKFRSs will not have

material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

— AR

ARAR/—HRFAEHSRERSHESRARE
TR 2 R ARAE] o i Eminit
/£ Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lslands ° H = B & Z it B it AEE
BIFIEMARE8IR AR AE 15 1606 = © &
RNAZROREEBER ZAAR DA ([ER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=FF+4¥=H=+—HIF/&

Significant Accounting Policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments which are

carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements and areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial

statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group has

control.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+4#=H=+—HIFF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the

control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised profits on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

Business combination and goodwiill

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary in an acquisition

are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses of goodwill
are recognised in the consolidated income statement and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating

units for the purpose of impairment testing.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

0)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates ruling on the balance
sheet date. Profits and losses resulting from this translation

policy are included in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
instruments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary items, such as equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are

included in the investment revaluation reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. FEEIHHEGE
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued) (c) INEETR ()
(i) Translation on consolidation (i) #REBRBRRE

The results and financial position of all the Group entities REEETHAE AT ZNEE K

that have a functional currency different from the Company’s BRIRARRIZ2HE - HER

presentation currency are translated into the Company’s M BMRRIRIA T EERE BARA

presentation currency as follows: Al 2WE -

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are - BEERRRPEHCEER
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance BEERAEEH ZRMEXRRK
sheet; g

—  income and expenses for each income statement are - BEmEREHRZIBARFEZNA
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average FHERBRE (BRIELTFHE
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative A B LA S BRI BEHE IR R A2
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in SBERBAEXRY RET &
which case income and expenses are translated at the 2 HREAT  WARRX
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and AR 5 B 2 EREITH]E)

K

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the —  PIBRbmES 2 E X EREY
foreign currency translation reserve. FONEETE 5 B P RERR o

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the EREGEMBHRER  RERNE

translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of INRRIEREFEMEEEE &N

borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation EH O RMINBERGETRER B

reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange HEBINEER - ZFE N EEE

differences are reocogised in the consolidated income e BmRANER AL E S

statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal. Bz —#H -

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of WEGIIRBMEEZABRAT

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign BEARE HRFBEINRAZEE

entity and translated at the closing rate. REERRE - WIRKHERIRE -

RERRERERAT —E2LFEFR DD
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bt %% 3R 3% Kf 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income

statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost less their residual values over the estimated useful lives

on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold building 2.5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 30% or over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 30%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are

reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
The gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is the difference between

the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset, and is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+4#=H=+—HIFF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

U]

(9)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Deferred development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly defined;
the expenditure is separately identifiable and can be measured
reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the projects are technically
feasible; and the products have commercial value. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is

expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised, using the straight-line method, over
the expected useful lives of the underlying products subject to a
maximum period of three years, commencing from the date when

the products are available as to use.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis

where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract

whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe

established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at

fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the

case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either investments held for trading or designated as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. These
investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these investments

are recognised in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are investments not classified
as held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these investments are recognised
directly in equity, until the investments are disposed of or are
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in equity are recognised in the

income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement for
equity investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are not subsequently reversed through the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement for debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently reversed and recognised
in the income statement if an increase in the fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring

after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+4#=H=+—HIFF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

)]

(k)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the allowance is the difference between the receivables’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised in the

income statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in the income statement when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component

of cash and cash equivalents.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in

which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

U]

(m)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can

be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control

over the goods sold;

solution integration services and wireless mobile value added
services income, when the relevant services have been

rendered; and

interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into account
the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate

applicable.

Employee benefits

U)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to the income statement represents

contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+4#=H=+—HIFF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)

()

(o)

(p)

(i)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy

by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic

possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments. Equity-
settled share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-

based vesting conditions.

Government grants
A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to it and that the grant will be received.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(q) Related parties

A party is related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vii)

directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the
party controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or has joint control over the

Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a joint venture;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the

Company or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (iv) or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party

of the Group.

3. EEESFHRGE)

(a) BEAEAL
ERMALTR TIER TBREREBEEH
3

() RATEERREEZRBEB-FRIAL
T EBEEIAEE  HARAEE
EH - RFLRES - ARAEE
BRREHAKETEEARENLZ
tEa - B AR E ARG

iy HALBBEBAL:

(i) ZALREBRHE:

V) ZALRARBHEABRAREEE
BAE

V) ZATLTA )k (v) AT E A E R A
T2 REIR

Vi) RATAZR (V) (v) BT IR E
BIALFTIES - HREHIREARR
B7N7 REBARRZEREE
REESMEBEMA ;5

Vi) ZFALA/RAEERTABAEE

BEAL 2 ARIMEBRH MR
BRERENEE -

EERRERERAT —SEL54H% 63




64

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products and services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to

risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that business segments be presented as
the primary reporting format and geographical as the secondary

reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to the segment. Unallocated costs
represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of
fixed assets, inventories and trade receivables. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as tax liabilities

and corporate borrowings.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group balances and transactions
are between group enterprises within a single segment. Inter-
segment pricing is based on similar terms as those available to other

external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that

are expected to be used for more than one period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+4#=H=+—HIFF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets other than inventories,
receivables and investments to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the

cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the income statement, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the balance sheet date

Events after the balance sheet date that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the balance sheet date or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the balance sheet date that are not adjusting events are

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 # %=

FELFZA=S—ALFE

4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a)

(b)

Useful lives and impairment assessment of fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
identified impairment losses. The estimation of useful lives impacts
the level of annual depreciation and amortisation recorded. Fixed
assets are evaluated for possible impairment on a specific asset
basis or in groups of similar assets, as applicable. This process
requires management’s estimate of future cash flows generated
by each asset or group of assets. For any instance where this
evaluation process indicates impairment, the relevant asset’s
carrying amount is written down to the recoverable amount and
the amount of the write-down is charged against the results of

operations.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are occasions that the tax policy currently
adopted by an entity may be subject to review based on subsequent
interpretations or for administrative reasons with retrospective effect.
The Group recognises liabilities for the different in tax policy on
the most prudent ground by assuming the worst scenario would
be resulted. Where the final tax outcome of these inconsistencies
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax in the period when such

determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bt #% 3R 3% Kf 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FFT+F=H=+—HI F&

5. Financial Risk Management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency debt. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.

Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an

appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade receivables included in the
consolidated balance sheet represents the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of

cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ff 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

5. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

(e) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated balance sheet approximate

their respective fair values.

6. Turnover

The Group’s turnover which represents the net invoiced value of goods
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts, business tax,

where applicable, and services rendered are as follows:

TR B IR ()
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MR AREL REE 2 5B AERARE
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REE S EBED HE SR RAIRERBE

MBRE 970 - EXH(WER) B BEF
BT :

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000

—EELF ZETRX
FET FAET
Sale of goods BEmiHE 652 4,809
Services income ARAE WA 50,570 54,241
51,222 59,050
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=FF+4¥=H=+—HIF/&

7. Other Income 7. HiblkA
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EELHF :gg /5 E
Interest income FEYA 300 918
Investment income KEWA 347 406
Gain on disposals of fixed assets HEREEEERE 63 4
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERAFEEYRREESRERE
fair value through profit or loss 2 S BEE WS 21 25
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts R BR#EHK BB - 1,218
Others Hfb 411 181
1,142 2,752
8. Segment Information 8. DEPER
(@) Primary reporting format - business segments (@) EEFRBEA-FBTH

FR - AEBEBREEEEY  MEE—

During the year, the Group has re-aligned its business activities and

(b)

the new classification of business segments for the year ended 31

March 2007 was as follows:

(i)  Provision of solution integration services; and

(i) Provision of wireless mobile value added services.

Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

No geographical segment information is presented as the Group’s
revenue and assets are substantially derived from customers and
operations based in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and accordingly, no further analysis of the Group’s geographical

segments is disclosed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf 7% %R % i 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

8. Segment Information (continued) 8. DEER (&)
Primary reporting format - business segments FTERREX - EK5H
Provision of Provision of
solution wireless
integration mobile value
services  added services Corporate
REERH RUEESY andother  Consolidated
RESRH BIEERY DAREM &e
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR
Year ended 31 March 2007 HE-TZLE-AS+-HILEE
Turnover ] 981 50,241 - 51,022
Segment results AEEE (617) (3,913) = (4,530)
Other income HipA 1,142
Unallocated expenses FARER (31,357)
Loss from operations LEER (34,745)
Finance costs HBER (24)
Loss before tax BEAIEE (34,769)
At 31 March 2007 RZEE+F=A=1—H
Segment assets DEEE 264 8,448 - 8,712
Unallocated assets FAREE 12,221
Total assets BEE 20,933
Segment liabilies AHAE 10,778 666 - 11,444
Unallocated liabilties F*okafkE 4,846
Total liabilties BERE 16,200
Other segment information: HtDaEH :
Capital expenditure BARY - 1,279 879 2,158
Depreciation & 74 1,528 680 2,282
Fixed assets written off BlE AR 8 - 312 - 312
Allowance for doubtful debts PN 375 3,461 - 3,836
Inventories written off FEME 30 - - 30

REREERERAT —TTtFFR 11




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bt %% 3R 3% Kf 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FFT+F=H=+—HI FE

8. Segment Information (continued) 8. DEER (&)
Primary reporting format - business segments (continued) FERRER - EKo (&)
Provision of Provision of
solution wireless
integration mobile value
services  added services Corporate
RS REESY and other Consolidated
REARE BIEERE AR REM )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin T THL T
Year ended 31 March 2006 BE_ZEA F=A=1—RHILEE
Turnover 2¥8 5,901 53,149 - 59,050
Segment results e 1,794 5,886 - 7,680
Other income HipA 2752
Unallocated expenses AORER (37,849)
Loss from operations LEER (27,417)
Finance costs BER (37)
Loss before tax BEAEE (27,454)
At 31 March 2006 RZZE F=A=1-H
Segment assets PEEE 3,665 19,419 = 23,084
Unallocated assets ROMEE 26,170
Total assets BEE 49,254
Segment liabilties AHaE 14,331 2,118 - 16,449
Unallocated liabilties ROWEE 12,648
Total liabilities aafE 29,097
Other segment information: HihHepas
Capital expenditure UNET - 1,080 1278 2,358
Depreciation WE 16 746 1,073 1,835
Fixed assets written off EEEEMmE - - _ i
Allowance for doubtful debts AR 79 - = 79
Inventories written off FEH - _ _ _
9. Finance Costs 9. HKEBEH
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EELHF ZETRF
FHET FET
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZFIE 24 35
Interest expense on a finance lease BMEMRE 2 FEFAX = 2
24 37
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

Bt 3 SRR MY EE

(%)

10. Income Tax Credit 10. FIEHiEe

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EELHF :gg/ \i

Current year provision: REZHEE
Hong Kong B = =
Elsewhere Hftb b= 6 6
6 6
Overprovision in prior years FFBREEE (286) (286)
Underprovision in prior year FEBETR = 6
(280) (274)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group did not

generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year

(2006: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated

at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates,

based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

thereof.

The reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax using

the statutory tax rates for the countries in which the Company and its

subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit at the effective tax rate is as

HRARERFRNREEBELABRTGEH

(Z2TXF )

CMERTEERTBFE

M2 B - HtitlEs o EaRTOE N TR IR A &

KD E

ERARAR T MEMBA

SEBEBREM 2 RITEN - 288

HWIRITH R B -

BIFTEBR 2XRE

R E 2 BB ATE R 2 TR R R IR BB
K E 2 HIRB R 2 SRR -

follows:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EELHF ZEEREF
FET FHT
Loss before tax FR#% AT EIE (34,769) (27,454)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate RE /’Pfﬂ ST E17.5%
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) (ZZZTREF 1 17.5%)TE 2 HiE (3,906) (3,805)
Tax at the Mainland China statutory tax e lj([@/irﬁm <33%
rate of 33% (2006: 33%) (ZZTNF : 33%)sTE 2B (4,109) (1,883)
Lower applicable tax rate enjoyed by AEE=ZAzBRIEEA
the Group = 2,240 987
Estimated tax effect of net expenses PATEE TE JE SR B o ) BRe 1S BT H00RE
that are not deductible in determining F S 8B 2 (A ET RS
taxable profit TE 3,818 3,722
Estimated tax losses not recognised RERER 2 LT THI8EE 1,963 985
Adjustments in respect of current tax of AT EE BFIBED
previous years 2 (286) (280)
Income tax credit ST 2 (280) (274)

EENBERERAT —STLEFHR 13




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI F&F

1. Loss for the Year

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the

B |RHE 0

11. EREE

AEEz FREBRENR,GTA) THISHEE

following: B8R
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EELHF —EERF
FHBT FET
Cost of inventories sold EHFERAE 360 4,005
Depreciation Tﬁé 2,282 1,835
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: K& EFEBENK
Land and buildings ii‘@,&@ﬂf 6,549 6,833
Motor vehicles REE 333 461
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRTEN & 460 380
Fixed assets written off & E & E M 312 -
Allowance for doubtful debts RERMEH 3,836 79
Inventories written off f‘b?ﬁﬂfﬁ 30 =
Refund of business tax and value R RIBER IR
added tax* 7) (78)
Research and development costs** 7S K A B AR AN 1,463 2,518

* The current year’s refund of business tax in the amount of HK$7,000 (2006:

HK$71,000) represented the financial subsidy granted by the PRC governmental

authority. The subsidy was determined based on the business tax paid by one of

the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC and is offset against the business tax charged

during the year.

Hox

Research and development costs are included in “Other operating expenses”

- REEEEBBERSTER7,0008T(ZFTR
F: 71,000/87T) - ETHBEBTHBAR L Z
BI ISR o BB HIRAEEE P —HE
M AR & BB E - WIKHFERZ &

£

» MR ERBRAREES

&i8%%

Sk [EAR R

) BHREIEETIAKAN,463,0008L (2
JNEF £ 2,518,000/87T) + #%EE TRANE BIER
BASIRRMIE 12 BITHEE 2 B TRCAEEENA o

on the face of the consolidated income statement and included staff costs of
HK$1,463,000 (2006: HK$2,518,000) which is also included in the total staff costs

disclosed separately in note 12 to the financial statements.

12. Staff Costs (Including Directors’ Emoluments) 12. BEIA (BRESHS)
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EBELHF —EERF
FER FAET
Salaries, bonus and allowances e - JEAL RRERE 27,506 28,957
Share-based payments LARR 1D B 3R 740 130
Pension scheme contributions RIREFEIHR 2,562 2,312
Severance payments B S 159 55
30,967 31,454
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf 7% %R % i 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

13. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments 13. EEKEEME
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEHB<
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEFEZHE0T ¢
Salaries, other Pension
allowances and scheme
benefits in kind contributions
Fees e Hity BAKEEE Total
e EEREYAE H= st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT FTERx FERT
Mr. Yip Seng Mun EBREE - 2,876 - 2,876
Mr. Yip Heon Ping EmTEE - 4,000 12 4,012
Mr. Yip Heon Wai Rt - 2,145 12 2,157
Mr. Yip Heon Keung Erais - 3,468 12 3,480
Mr. James T. Siano James T. Siano %t & - - - -
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine ~ #t B34+ 100 - - 100
Ms. Lai May Lun RERTLT 100 - - 100
Total for 2007 AR 200 12,489 36 12,725
Salaries, other Pension
allowances and scheme
benefits in kind contributions
Fees e Hip RIKEETE Total
ok R KRB = K Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAHT FHT FHEIT
Mr. Yip Seng Mun EBREE - 2,872 - 2,872
Mr. Yip Heon Ping EmTEE - 3,776 12 3,788
Mr. Yip Heon Wai Rt - 2,234 12 2,246
Mr. Yip Heon Keung Erais - 3,197 12 3,209
Mr. James T. Siano James T. Siano %t & - - - -
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine  #t B34+ 115 - - 115
Ms. Lai May Lun RERIL 8 - - 8
The late Mr. Au Shing & & 4 A
Kwok (Note (i) (BB () 63 - - 63
Total for 2006 ZETNFER 186 12,079 36 12,301

() RAREEEBYR-ZEZTRFNAAN
HEHE -

Note (i): The late Mr. Au Shing Kwok passed away on 8 August 2005.

FRI R E F R K BTN
B2k

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed

to waive any emoluments during the year.

RERRERERAT —ETLEFR 1D




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI F&F

13.

Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included four (2006: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected

in the analysis presented above. The emolument of the remaining

13.

B |RHE 0

EEkEEME

(%)

(b) BuUGSHMAL
FARKERUESHMA T BB
(Z2TRF : O)EFR - HFSFER
REX - BT (ZFFRF : —1)3F

one (2006: one) individual is set out below: EEmaT AT ZHEFERIINAT
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EBELHF :TT/ \i

Salaries, other allowances and e - HiE R

benefits in kind EMH= 2,184 1,771
Pension scheme contributions RIS T BT 12 12
2,196 1,783

14.

15.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or the highest paid individual as an inducement to join, or upon joining the

Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company included a loss of
approximately HK$33,568,000 (2006: HK$26,300,000) which has been

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Loss per Share

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2007 is based on the loss for
the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$34,489,000 (2006: HK$27,180,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 562,315,068 (2006: 511,250,000) in issue

during the year.

Diluted loss per share
A diluted loss per share amount for each of the year ended 31 March
2007 and 2006 has not been presented, as the share options outstanding

had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for these years.
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14.

15.

FA ARESEABFTHEDHMA LN
TS EREFEMA - SEMBEAR KB
2 ERE B FE 1R o

RARIERFE AELEE
AQRE=FEA ARG EE 2R 33,568,000
BT (ZZEEZNF ¢ 26,300,000870) ZEBED
RARRZ A HEREANRIE

BREE

FREA IR

REE-FT+LHF-A=-+ALFE &2
AR A ARG 2 BIREAREBIREARR
BIEmE A AL AT 34,489,000 7 7T
ZT TR ¢ 27,180,000 ) RERNE BT
LAk 2 hfE 19 %0562,315,068 I (ZZE S

£ 1 511,250,000 %) 5t &

7

—~

SRBEE
HE-TTLER-_FEAF=A=1—AL
SFE2 SR EBRSRILRE2F) - Bk
T WS S EE N BREAEIEE
R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

16. Fixed Assets

16. BT EE

Group rEE
Office and
computer
Leasehold equipment,
building in furniture
Mainland Leasehold and fixtures
China improvements BAZHEBHK Motor
EHER e RE - & vehicles Total
ZHERT V3 HETEE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T FET T
Cost: BAE
At 1 April 2005 RZZETREMA—H 1,385 1,844 25,712 2,038 30,979
Additions NE - 143 2,215 - 2,358
Disposals HE - - (807) = (807)
Exchange differences BB =5 - 44 219 35 298
At 31 March 2006 RZEERF=A=1+—H 1,385 2,031 27,339 2,073 32,828
At 1 April 2006 RZTZT EMA—A 1,385 2,031 27,339 2,073 32,828
Additions NE - 696 1,462 - 2,158
Disposals & - - (225) (379) (598)
Write off sy - (1,689) (2,995) = (4,684)
Exchange differences b =% - 34 405 57 496
At 31 March 2007 R-EE+tF=A=1+—H 1,385 1,072 25,986 1,757 30,200
Accumulated depreciation 2 TER
and impairment: WE :
At 1 April 2005 RZZTZTREMA—A 3 1,608 23,375 1,578 26,564
Provided during the year FRE 35 148 1,442 210 1,835
Disposals & - - (801) - (801)
Exchange differences s - 44 144 35 223
At 31 March 2006 RZET E=A=+—H 38 1,800 24,160 1,823 27,821
At 1 April 2006 RZFZEEMA—-A 38 1,800 24,160 1,823 27,821
Provided during the year FRkE 34 304 1,814 130 2,282
Disposals HE - - (217) (373) (590)
Write off s - (1,687) (2,685) - (4,372)
Exchange differences [E 5 =R - 5 265 57 327
At 31 March 2007 RZEE+FE=A=1—H 72 422 23,337 1,637 25,468
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 March 2007 RZEEt+tF=A=1+—H 1,313 650 2,649 120 4,732
At 31 March 2006 RZEERF=A=1+—H 1,347 231 3,179 250 5,007
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bt %% 3R 3% Kf 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FFT+F=H=+—HI FE

17. Available-for-sale Financial Assets 17. At ECRIEE
The directors consider the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial EERAHEECREE 2 RABEBRAEQT
assets approximates their fair value. BEES -
18. Interests in Subsidiaries 18. RHTB AR 2
Company
b NN
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—BELHF ZEERF
FHET FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost I LMk 2 KA 27,445 27,445
Due from subsidiaries FEFHT BB A B 5RIE 372,214 356,305
399,659 383,750
Impairment losses BIEEE (393,850) (362,850)
5,809 20,900
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and will FEWP B A T IB T EIEE - e B R Tek
not be repayable within the next twelve months. K+ —EAARNEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+4#=H=+—HIFF

18. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2007

18. MOKIEB A B2 et ()
R-ZTLEZA=+—R  FRAEEMS

are as follows: NRZFEWT
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and Percentage of
operations fully paid ownership
and kind of share capital/ interest/voting
legal entity registered capital power/profit sharing
AL R BRTR ek REE
Subsidiary EEMRIER BERAN SRR sE Principal activities
MEAE FEEREME EUTIEN Bt TEXK
Prosten (BVI) Limited British Virgin 21,025 ordinary 100 Investment holding
Islands, limited shares of US$1 each RAE R
liability company 21,025 %
REELES BREE1ET
BREERA 2 ERER
Prosten Technology Co. Hong Kong, limited 1,000,000 ordinary 100 Investment holding
Limited liability company shares of HK$1 each WA
REMBRBERAR &% - AREERA 1,000,000 f%
BREE1 BT
2 &k
Prolink Technology Hong Kong, limited 5 ordinary shares 100 Investment holding
Limited liability company of HK$1 each BEZER
BB AR AR BE - AREMERR 5ERREE 1 BT
2 &
Worldly Limited Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary 100 Investment holding
MzFIERDE liability company shares of HK$1 each REER
&% - AREERF 10,000 %
FREE1ET
Bk
Prosten Technology PRC, wholly-foreign US$3,500,000 100 Provision of solution
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. owned enterprise 3,500,000 7T integration and wireless
RESBBALHE with limited liability mobile value added
(&) BRAR HE - SNEEE services
BEREERE REBRFRES
NSRS B (B AR TS
Unison Networking PRC, wholly-foreign US$1,500,000 100 Provision of solution

Services (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

owned enterprise
with limited liability

1,500,000 % 7T

integration and wireless
mobile value added

BRI BT AR R SNEEE services
(L8 BRAR BREMERE RERATRES
REGBEILERD

B Prosten (BVI) Limited 51 + Fr 8 E A K& A A

Other than Prosten (BVI) Limited, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.

HHARREERSE °

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

BEEZERAR - ERAVARBZHBLRREEY
BARFEEZEEIBRAEEEEFEIIE
WMo  BERA - JIHEMMBRARZFHER
LRIEERITE °

REMBEBRERAR ST LFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bt %% 3R 3% Kf 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FFT+F=H=+—HI FE

19. Inventories 19. &
Group
AEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
—gBLE —TTAA
FET FAET
Work in progress EB G - 29
Finished goods K - 294
- 828
20. Trade Receivables 20. FEURERFK

REBEBENZRE  BRER—RHEEE
B RURFIZFRERSR T AR R
B WAETA A @ E 2 52 B E L RER
&t AT LAFARR o SEARRIP AL RS o

Trade receivables, which generally have credit terms pursuant to the
provisions of the relevant contracts, are recognised and carried at
original invoice amount, and an estimate for doubtful debts is made and
deducted when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad
debts are written off as incurred.

7R B JE W R Rk (O BR (1R 18 ) 2 BR ik 3 4 4R

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of allowances, is

80

as follows: T
Group
AEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EERLF ZETREF
THET FHET
0-90 days 3,505 13,490
91-180 days 2,809 3,481
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 125 2,576
Over 365 days 30 888
6,469 20,435

For the year ended 31 March 2007, an allowance was made for estimated
irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately HK$3,836,000 (2006:
HK$79,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 # %=

21.

22.

FELFZA=S—ALFE

Bank and Cash Balances

As at 31 March 2007, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$1,634,000 (2006:
HK$4,014,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

Trade Payables

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables is as follows:

21.

22.

Bt 3 SRR MY & (40

ﬁE?ﬁ&iﬁinuﬁ%

RZZET+LF=ZA=1+—08 ' AEEUARK

ZTTNAE 4,014,000 7T) ° }\Eﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁ
fth & #E 7B <F o B ONGE 5 I 1) e A B - S
A EE RS -

PRI

AEE 2 BRI KRBT

Group
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—ETtHF —EBETRF
FHET FAT
0-90 days 0Z90H 362 1,189
91-180 days 912180 H 14 30
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 119 1,476
Over 365 days it 365 H 7,975 9,146
8,470 11,841

23.

24.

Amount(s) due to Directors/a Senior Officer

The amount(s) due to directors and a senior officer are unsecured, interest

free and repayable on demand.

Banking Facilities

The Group has no material banking facilities as at 31 March 2007.

As at 31 March 2006, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by a
bank deposit of HK$441,000 and a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$31,036,000 executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

At 31 March 2006, the banking facilities utilised by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$441,000.

23.

24.

BNESE/—2=HRBE 2508

F’é’ﬁé%/ ERRBE 2 RIBETDEER - 2
/,\?izﬁ%maﬁ'i

R1T1zE

BN - +F=A=+—HIESEKAR
AEER -_ZENF=A=+—HZRTEE
A 44

0007870 Z IRITIF SRIEHE R KA AR
THf B A RIVEH A RIHEIR 31,036,000

RZBEAF=ZA=1+—H AKEEHAZ
RITEEHI R 441,00087T ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

25.

Deferred Tax

The Group has estimated deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$7,331,000 (2006: HK$6,995,000) calculated on tax losses arising
in Hong Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future

taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax

assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have

arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time.

B |RHE @

25. RIERIIE

AREE 2 EEHRE T I & & 497,331,000 % 7T
(ZZTZTRF 16,995,000 7T) * TIARER
EEZBIBEBENE - WHIEEREEER
wAEEEESEE AR BEZERB S
F o RZEN AR E S &S — R
B S R 52 S IR RE R IE S -

26. Share Capital 26. AR
Number of Shares HK$’000
BHEE FET
Authorised: SEERRAN :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 HRE{E0.10/8TT
(2006: HK$0.10) each (ZZTRF : 0.1087m) 2 ERK
At 1 April 2005, RZZEZRFMHA—H -
31 March 2006 and —EERF=-A=T—AK
31 March 2007 —EE+FE=A=+—H 2,500,000,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBRRKRAK :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BREE0108T
(2006: HK$0.10) each (ZETRF 1 01087L) c ZERK
At 1 April 2005 and RZZFETZRFMA—AB K
31 March 2006 —ETRF=A=+—H 511,250,000 51,125
Issue of shares on placements BoE RFEE AT AR (D 81,125,000 8,112
At 31 March 2007 RZZBZ+F=A=+—H 592,375,000 59,237
On 18 May 2006, the Company entered into a share placing and RZZEERFRA+TN\B @ ARRIE—FFE=

subscription agreement with a third party and an existing shareholder
in respect of the placing of 51,125,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to
the investor at a price of HK$0.14 per share. The placing by transfer
of shares was completed on 25 May 2006 and the subscription was
completed on 26 May 2006. The premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$2,045,000 (before share issue expenses
of HK$133,000) was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

On 21 December 2006, the Company entered into a share placing agreement
with a third party in respect of the subscription of 30,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$0.34 per share. The subscription was
completed on 29 December 2006. The premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$7,200,000 (before share issue expenses of
HK$228,000) was credited to the Company’s share premium account.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 # %=

FELFZA=S—ALFE

27. Share Options

The Company’s share option scheme which was adopted on 7 March

2000 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated and replaced by a new share

option scheme approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general

meeting of the Company held on 9 April 2002 (the “New Scheme”). The

options granted under the Old Scheme remain exercisable within their

respective exercise periods.

A summary of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme is set out below:

(a)

(b)

Old Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants include the Company’s directors and employees of the
Group. Under the Old Scheme, the board was authorised, at its
absolute discretion, to grant options to the Company’s directors
and employees of the Group, to take up options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company. The Old Scheme became effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM of the Exchange on 28 March 2000.

New Scheme

The New Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 23 April 2002. Under the New Scheme, the
directors may, at their sole discretion, grant to any eligible
participants options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company
at the higher of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company on the
GEM as stated in the Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date
of the offer of grant; or (i) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company on the GEM as stated in the Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the share.
The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21 days from
the date of the offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the grant of an option. The exercise period of the
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends in any event not later than
10 years from the date of the offer on which the offer for grant of
the option is made, subject to the provisions for early termination

thereof.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FFT+F=H=+—HI FE

27. Share Options (continued)

(b) New Scheme (continued)
The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon

exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme is an
amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as

at the date of the extraordinary general meeting held on 9 April 2002.

The maximum number of securities to be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the

relevant class of securities of the Company in issue from time to time.

The following share options were outstanding under the Old Scheme

during the year:

27. BRRSHE (%)

(b)

Hat & (&)

RARERT A 8% 2 P A BRI T(E
A A MEIT 2RO A - EBERE
REBEBRRFIASRTAN_FTT_F
MANBZARRREHTRNZ 10% °

HiRE# 8 R AR B L tiER st
IPTRH R# FITE A W RETEZ
BRRETEM S TREERBETZE SR
BEE - BARHATEBTREHEITZA
NRIERERRIESZ 30% °

VB AT B KA1 T I 2 SRR T -

Number of share options Price of Company’s shares ***
BEAERE beise | FAARBERE™
Date of Exercise period price of  Atre-grant At exercise
At1Aprii  Lapsed At31March share options of share options  share options date of date of
Name or category 2006 during 2007 re-granted* re-granted  re-granted™  options options
of participant RZBBAE  theyear R-FFLE BRMRE ERERE ERBERE RERE  NERE
SREM 2B MA-B §R%X% =A=t-H ERAS* ZATEER ZiTkE* BRAY  fTEAH
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT AT
Directors
£
Mr. Yip Seng Mun 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 0.40 N/A
ERREE ZEREN\AZTZA 21 August 2011 NER
“EE-F)\f-T2RZE
“3——F/\A=t-E
Mr. Yip Heon Ping 6,300,000 - 6,300,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 0.40 040 N/A
EmTas ZFZ-E\A=TZH 21 August 2011 TER
“ET-F\R=TZRZE
ZE—4ENAZT-H
Mr. Yip Heon Wai 5,300,000 - 5,300,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 040 N/A
ERfia e ZEREN\AZTZH 21 August 2011 TR
“ZT-%\A-fZR%
~F——F/\A=t-E
Mr. Yip Heon Keung 5,300,000 - 5,300,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 040 N/A
Emigkh “FZ-E\A=TZH 21 August 2011 NER
ZE2-E)\AZTZRE
ZF——FN\Azt-H
22,900,000 - 22,900,000
Other employees
HtbES
In aggregate 4,465,000 - 4,465,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 040 N/A
GE “EF-FN\A=1zH 21 August 2011 IR
Z22-E)\AZTZRE
ZE—ENAZT-H
27,365,000 - 27,365,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

27. Share Options (continued) 27. HERRHE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the New Scheme FRFT BN R AREI TR 2 BRENT

during the year:

Number of share options Price of Company’s shares ***
N *kk
Ll bose  TAARGER
Date of Exercise period price of Atgrant At exercise
At 1 April Granted Lapsed At 31 March share options of share options  share options date of date of
Name or category 2006 during during 2007 granted* granted granted™ options options
of participant RZBEAE  theyear  theyear W-EELE B RLBRE REBRE RERE  WBRE
SRR ANRG MA-B  E#REL  EAXR ZA=t-A RiEA& ZITEER 2B RERH  TEAS
HKS HKS HKS$
BT BT BT
Other employees
A8
In aggregate 840,000 - (40,0000 800,000 22 May 2002 22 May 2002 to 026 0.26 N/A
At S e = 21 May 2012 NER
“EECFRACTCRE
“E-CFRAZT-H
In aggregate 2,450,000 - (600,000) 1,850,000 26 March 2004 26 March 2004 to 010 0.10 N/A
it k1 e 25 March 2014 i
“EEME=R-1RAZ
“ZF-PIE=A-11A
In aggregate 1,900,000 - (1,900,000 - 23 February 2006 23 February 2006 to 010 0.08 N/A
At “EENE-R-TER 22 February 2016 Byl
“ZERE-A-fEHR
ZE-NECAZTZR
In aggregate - 10,780,000 (1,500,000 9,280,000 10 May 2006 10 May 2006 to 017 0.17 N/A
Aif ZZTERATH 9May 2016 i
“25FRATHR
“E- EnANA
Others
b
In aggregate 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 26 March 2004 26 March 2004 to 010 0.10 N/A
it “TERFZA=17H 25 March 2014 NER
ZZEMEZA=13EE
“3-MmE=A-1EA
In aggregate 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 24 June 2005 24 June 2005 to 010 0.10 N/A
aif ZEEREAAZTIA 23 June 2015 i
“EEREAR-THAZ
“Z-RE~AZTZA
In aggregate - 200,000 - 200,000 10 May 2006 10 May 2006 to 017 0.17 N/A
At “Z5ERATA 9 May 2016 NER
“E3,ER1ATRZ
“E2-7FRANA
Inaggregate - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 29 June 2006 29 June 2006 to 038 0.32 N/A
aif ZTERERAZTAA 28 June 2016 NER
“EERERAZTNRR
ZE-NERAZTIR
9,390,000 11,980,000 (4,040,000 17,330,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

27. Share Options (continued)

Hox

The time of acceptance of the share options was within 21 days from the options
offer date. The share options granted are subject to certain vesting period and
vary for each category of participant as specified under the respective share option

schemes.

The exercise price of the share options was subject to adjustment in the case of

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the grant of the
share options was the Exchange’s closing price on the trading day on the date of

the grant of the share options.

In addition to the 5,300,000 share options personally held by the director, Mr.
Yip Heon Wai, he is also deemed to be interested in the share options held by
his spouse (in her capacity as an employee of the Company) to subscribe for
4,300,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.40 within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, and whose

exercise period is from 22 August 2001 to 21 August 2011.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 27,365,000 and 17,330,000

share options outstanding under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme,

respectively. The exercise in full of these options would, under the present

capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 44,695,000

additional ordinary shares of the Company, additional share capital of
HK$4,469,500, and share premium of HK$9,281,100, respectively,

before related share issue expenses.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a total of 500,000 share options

were lapsed under the New Scheme.

Share options granted under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme do

not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’

meetings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Bf %% %R % ffi 5% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

27. Share Options (continued) 27. HERRHE (&)

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 6 years (2006: 6 years) and the exercise
prices range from HK$0.10 to HK$0.40 (2006: range from HK$0.10 to
HK$0.40). 10,980,000 and 1,000,000 share options were granted on 10
May 2006 and 29 June 2006 respectively. The estimated fair values of the
options on those dates are HK$1,275,000 and HK$260,000 respectively.

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

RAFE R - MARTTHEERIRAES NF
BEENAENFER(ZTTRNE  ~F) 178
B 0.10BTE 0408 T (ZFZ/R4F - B10.10
HBILE04087T) - DRIR =TT FAATH
R ZETRF/NA =T LB 10,980,00015 K
1,000,0007 B AR #E - ZEEIRENZEREIZ
EETAFHEED R A1,275,000747T % 260,0007

JG °

ZENFEEDAENR - FRETEERAG
& LT RHALRANEER

Share options granted on

NEIGEE T T
10 May 2006 29 June 2006
Bt N

EA+H RAZtAhH

Weighted average share price IR ARE
Weighted average exercise price IEETFHITEE
Expected volatility for employees TEEIR IR (BB)
Expected volatility for others e B R e (CEL )
Expected life TEHAFHA

Risk free rate mE =
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B as R

HK$0.17 & T HK$0.32 7 7T
HK$0.17 /& 7T HK$0.38 7% 7T
97.44% N/A A5
90.77% 107.91%
3.0-6.5 years 5.0-6.5 years &
4.64%-4.77% 4.80%-4.85%
0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous 5 years. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural considerations.

ERR B AR AR ENBERF ZERIKIE
BE - WRAER BN FHERBEERER
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fEET R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+#=H=+—HI FF

28. Reserves

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the PRC laws and regulations, a portion of the profits of the

Group’s subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred

to the statutory reserve fund which are restricted as to use.

Company

B |RHE @

28. f##E
KEM
AEE Y HECERESBERIINGA S
BEER o

RBHBOADIRRTE - AR ER T B2 Mt
BRRZEEN CERELERBES A
KIRZ PR TIE RS

2k

RN

Share-based

Share payments
premium reserve Accumulated
account [Erp=¥N losses Total
B E R BN ZETEE @et
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHIT FAT FHL
At 1 April 2005 W-BTREM/—H 339,275 - (344,233) (4,958)
Loss for the year FAEA - - (26,300) (26,300)
Recognition of SRR A7
share-based payments [RES - 283 - 283
At 31 March 2006 RZZERF=A=+—H 339,275 283 (370,533) (30,975)
Share issue expenses BT AY (361) = = (361)
Loss for the year FNEE - - (33,568) (33,568)
Issue of shares ?’fﬁﬂx 9,245 - - 9,245
Recognition of RUARGD B
share-based payments HTA - 1,007 = 1,007
Transfer R - (86) 86 =
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZLF=A=1+—H 348,159 1,204 (404,015) (54,652)
Nature and purpose of reserves BEZEERAE
(@) Share premium account (@ mhRER
The share premium account includes (i) shares issued at premium; I RERBE()EREZETIR’D &
and (i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of (N ARARR - EETEEITAREBSHI

the Company issued in exchange for the issued share capital of
the subsidiaries and the value of the underlying net assets of the
subsidiaries at the date they were acquired by the Company at
the time of the Group reorganisation in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares in 2000. Under the Companies Law (2001
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium account is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FF+4#=H=+—HIFF

28.

29.

Reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(o) Share-based payments reserve
The fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company and others
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for

share-based payments in note 3(n) to the financial statements.

(c) Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 3(c)(iii) to the

financial statements.

(d) Statutory reserve fund
In accordance with the PRC Company law and the respective
company’s articles of association, a subsidiary of the Group
established in the PRC, being a wholly-foreign owned enterprise,
is required to appropriate not less than 10% of the annual
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses),
to the statutory reserve fund. When the balance of the reserve
fund reaches 50% of each entity’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. With the approval from the relevant
authorities, the statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior
years’ losses or to increase capital. The reserve fund cannot be

distributed in the form of cash.

(e) Distributable reserves
The Company’s reserves available for the distribution comprise the
share premium account after the deduction of accumulated losses.
In the opinion of the directors, the Company had no reserve available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March 2007 and 2006.

Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Major non-cash transactions
For the year ended 31 March 2007, an amount of HK$9,072,000 due to
directors and a senior officer was applied to offset against a trade debtor

balance.

28.

29.

(&)
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FFT+F=H=+—HI FE

30.

Operating Lease Arrangements

The Group leases certain of its office properties and motor vehicles under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for

terms ranging from one to three years.

At 31 March 2007, the Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

30.

REHER

AEBERBEEHERHHEEEETHAEY
ERAE - KHERRBEMEZHERR—F

E=EFE -

REZZEZLF=A=+—08 ' ZEERETA
BE A ER B E M2 RREERES KR
£y N

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EELF ZETRF
FET FHET

Land and buildings: T RETF
Within one year —FK 3,977 4,029
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZFERFT (BREEEMRT) 2,127 1,887
6,104 5,916

Motor vehicles: RE
Within one year —FK 23 46
6,127 5,962
31. Commitments 31, HEIE

32.

The Company had no significant commitment at the balance sheet date
(2006: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities 32.

As at 31 March 2007, the Group has no material contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2006, the Company has given a corporate guarantee in
favour of a bank to the extent of HK$31,036,000 in respect of banking

facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2006, the banking facilities granted to the subsidiaries
subject to this guarantee given to the bank by the Company were utilised

to the extent of approximately HK$441,000.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z-FF+F=H=+—HI FZ

33. Related Party Transactions

In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

33. BEEALRS

B EPBERREMB T ARECAREAL
R RERIN  REBRERE THILGRE
ALTZR5

2007 2006
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

b —EELF ZETRX
FET FAET
Rental expenses paid ENAESAX (i) 463 655
Handling services fee paid BENEEREER (ii) 882 848
Rental expenses paid BfHEeAX (ii) 414 414

Notes:

(i

The rentals were paid in respect of the Group’s leased motor vehicles
to a related company, of which a shareholder of the related company
is the sister-in-law of Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a director of the Company.
The directors of the Company have confirmed that the monthly
rentals were calculated by reference to the then prevailing open

market rental value.

Handling services fee paid represented the fee charged on services
provided by a related company in handling the Group’s mobile value
added services, of which shareholders of the related company are
the father-in-law and sister-in-law of Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a director
of the Company. The fee was charged according to the terms of an
agreement dated 20 August 2003.

The rentals were paid in respect of the Group’s leased staff
quarter situated in Hong Kong to Mr. Yip Heon Wai, a director of
the Company, and his wife. The directors of the Company have
confirmed that the monthly rental was calculated by reference to the

then prevailing open market rental value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - FFT+F=H=+—HI FE

34.

35.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

On 30 April 2007, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with an existing shareholder of the Company (the “Subscriber”) in relation
to the subscription by the Subscriber of the zero-coupon convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$28,800,000 due 2012 (“Convertible
Bonds”) to be issued by the Company. If the convertible rights attached
to the Convertible Bonds are exercised in full at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.96 per share, the Subscriber will become interested in a total
of 30,000,000 shares of the Company. If the convertible rights attached
to the Convertible Bonds are exercised in full at the adjusted conversion
price of HK$0.50 per share, the Subscriber will become interested in a
total of 57,600,000 shares of the Company.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds was

approximately HK$28,000,000. The Convertible Bonds subscription was
completed on 6 June 2007.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 21 June 2007.
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